"I have become as a wonder to many..." Ps. 71:7

YOU ARE A WONDER

NIYI MAKINDE

NIYI MAKINDE YOU ARE A WONDER



Copyright © 2021 by Niyi Makinde

All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording, scanning, or otherwise without written permission from the publisher. It is illegal to copy this book, post it to a website, or distribute it by any other means without permission.

First edition

This book was professionally typeset on Reedsy. Find out more at reedsy.com

Contents

| Acknowledgement | | V |
|-----------------|--|----|
| 1 | BECOMING A WONDER | 1 |
| | What does it mean to become a wonder? | 2 |
| | Few blessings that we receive on Earth | 3 |
| 2 | PREMISE 1 | 5 |
| | BATTLES YOU CANNOT WIN BY YOURSELF | 5 |
| 3 | PREMISE 2 | 10 |
| | POSITIONS AND STATUS YOU CANNOT | |
| | GET YOURSELF | 10 |
| | MY PERSONAL EXPERIENCE | 12 |
| | WALK IN THE CONSCIOUSNESS OF | |
| | WHAT HE HAS TOLD YOU | 13 |
| | BE THE BEST | 14 |
| 4 | PREMISE 3 | 15 |
| | HONOR YOU CANNOT GET YOURSELF | 15 |
| 5 | PREMISE 4 | 17 |
| | VISIONS YOU CANNOT GET YOURSELF | 17 |
| 6 | PREMISE 5 | 18 |
| | Possessions you cannot get yourself | 18 |
| 7 | LESSONS FOR YOU | 19 |
| | GOD WON'T ANSWER THE PRAYERS OF | |
| | YOUR ENEMIES | 19 |
| | WHAT TO DO IN CHALLENGING MOMENTS | 21 |
| | WONDERS OF WONDER | 22 |

| | THREE WAYS TO SUPERNATURAL WONDERS | 22 |
|----------------------|--|----|
| 8 | WARFARE ZONES | 24 |
| | WAR IN HEAVEN | 24 |
| | LET'S TALK ABOUT THE BLOOD | 25 |
| | WARFARE ENDED IN HEAVEN; WAR- | |
| | FARE CONTINUES ON EARTH | 26 |
| | PRESSURE: A SIGN OF WARFARE | 27 |
| | LET'S EXAMINE HOW THE DEVIL | |
| | BRINGS IN PRESSURE | 27 |
| | HOW TO DEAL WITH PRESSURE | 28 |
| 9 | THE HELP OF GOD | 29 |
| | Certain scriptures about the help of God | 29 |
| | ENJOYING WONDERS WITHOUT NUMBER | 30 |
| About the Author | | 32 |
| Also by Niyi Makinde | | 33 |
| | | |

Acknowledgement

I acknowledge the Eternal Mind that possess the treasures of all knowledge and wisdom.

To everyone that contributed to this book– Akintunde Ajibesin, Emmanuel Ojodun, Kehinde Otesile – I celebrate you all. Your investment remains eternal.

I love all pastors,leaders and members of Rebirth Global Church. You are highly honored.

YOU ARE A WONDER

BY

NIYI MAKINDE

BECOMING A WONDER

There are many wonder people in our world. I remember how someone said to me, "sir, you are a wonder man…" I asked him why he said that and he said, "you know how to create surprises a lot. We may see something about you today that surprises us, by the next day or week, it is another amazement we will see about you." I smiled as he spoke but I said to him, "I don't know how to create wonders, God creates wonders for me."

To become a wonder is to become a surprise and amazement to other people. When your life is full of surprises, you are a wonder personality. We need many wonder people in our world today. Our God Himself is a God of wonders. He knows how to create wonders without being forced to do so.

Isaiah 8:18 "Behold, I and the children whom the LORD hath given me [are] for signs and for wonders in Israel from the LORD of hosts, which dwelleth in mount Zion"

This is the prophetic word that came from the mouth of Prophet Isaiah. You also can boldly declare that you and the children whom the Lord has given you are for signs and wonders.

God can make you a wonder to your country, family, the world.

"We are for signs and wonders to our country and the world at large."

Psalm 71:7 "I am as a wonder unto many; but thou [art] my strong refuge." This is the word from the mouth of David himself. May events happen in your life that will cause you to be bold enough to say God has made you a wonder to many and He is your strong refuge.

How can you explain a prisoner yesterday that became a prime minister the next day? That is a life of wonder indeed. If a school dropout eventually becomes a teacher to teachers, how will you explain that? God can raise the poor from the ashes and set him to sit among princes. When this happen, everyone will definitely be filled with amazements.

Your condition today is not an issue to God because there are many people who have gone through worst conditions but were delivered and helped by the Lord. God's help will settle everything. You can become a living wonder that will cause everyone to know that your God is God indeed.

What does it mean to become a wonder?

- 1. When you achieve easily, what others considered difficult, then, you become a wonder.
- 2. When you get to some position others couldn't get to, you become a wonder.
- 3. When you are loved and favored by a person others are striving to get his or her Love, you become a wonder.
- 4. When you get easily what others desire but found difficult to get, you become a wonder.

- 5. When you enter the corridors of power and influence without manipulation, you become a wonder.
- 6. When you know what others don't know, who others don't know, when you get what others aspire to get, you become a wonder.
- 7. When you're lifted by God to a realm of dominion that your background cannot explain, you become a wonder.
- 8. When you get within a short time, what took others years to get, you become a wonder.
- 9. When what relegated others to the back becomes an opportunity for you to soar to places, realms of power, you become a wonder.
- 10. When you become exempted from the limitations of others, you become a wonder.
- 11. When you move from standing before kings to sitting with Kings, you become a wonder.
- 12. When you prosper fast and you move fast in life than those who have been working for years, you become a wonder. Becoming a wonder makes others to desire your personality.
- 13. When others begin to find out what manner of man is this, then, you have become a wonder.

Few blessings that we receive on Earth

- 1. Your biological Parents are your blessings on earth.
- 2. Your spouse is your blessing on earth.
- 3. Your vision.
- 4. Your gift.

YOU ARE A WONDER

- 5. Your knowledge.
- 6. Your spiritual father and mentors
- 7. Your profession.
- 8. Your possession.
- 9. Your influence.
- 10. Your friends.

Your blessing makes you a wonder to many. You've got to know your blessing and walk in it. When you know your blessing, you won't be jealous of the blessings of others. When you know your blessing, you will celebrate with others when they get theirs.

BATTLES YOU CANNOT WIN BY YOURSELF

A premise is an idea that forms or justify the basis for a reasonable line of argument or point.

There are some battles you cannot win by yourself. You can only win by the strength of the Lord. There are some battles you cannot fight and if you try to fight them, you cannot win.

Israelites were nomads (cattle rearers) before they came to Egypt. But later became slaves in Egypt. These Israelites were never trained for war in their lives. They left Egypt with their possessions, money not with weapons.

The Egyptians were the world power as at then. They had conquered the world and had weapons. They had trained army (military men) with powerful weapons. They had tactic and strategies to defeat and overpower.

At the Red sea, the Egyptians pursued the former slaves and

the Israelites became fearful. Why were they fearful? The reason for such was because they saw warriors on horses and chariots running after them. But they on the other hand, trekked out of Egypt – no horse, no chariot.

Another thing that made the Israelites fearful was that they saw weapons (defensive and offensive ammunition). They were not with any weapons to fight. Even if they were to fight, it would be fight between armed army and weaponless civilians.

In Exodus 14:14, Moses told the Israelites to standstill (be calm) and see the salvation of the Lord which He would accomplish for them. He further declared that the Egyptians they saw that day; they shall see no more. Eventually, all Moses said came to pass.

The question I asked myself was that why could Moses say all he said? What gave him such confidence? It was later I discovered the secret from Exodus 14:14 which says "The Lord will fight for you, and you shall hold your peace."

There was something Moses knew about God that the Israelites didn't know about Him. Moses knew that God is a fighter. He knew God can fight with you and for you. And the question is that when God decides to fight, who can conquer Him? Definitely, none.

Let's establish these facts.

There are some people and matters you cannot fight yourself and if you decide to fight it, you cannot win.

1. You may not be able to fight or defeat a person richer than you –

Eccl. 7:12 says "money is a defense." You have to understand that money can win battles. It takes money to higher sound lawyers to defend or fight for you. It takes money to sponsor

certain things. A person with money will win you except God is with you. That is why I tell people to have money, even though I tell them to first put their trust in the Lord. It takes money to buy ammunition, hire police officials and get back what belongs to you.

It is only a person who has the Lord to His side that will defeat a person with money. Can money defeat the Lord? Absolutely no.

2. You may not be able to fight or defeat a person wiser than you

The fact is that you may not be able to defeat anyone that is more strategic than you. 2 Samuel 16:23 says the advice of Ahitophel in those days was as if one had inquired of the oracle of God." Evidently, Ahitophel was a strong counselor and diplomat.

2 Samuel 15:31 reveals that David prayed that God should turn the counsel of Ahitophel to foolishness. I discovered that David knew that it would be very hard to fight a man like Ahitophel for he was full of tactics. So, the only way a person could defeat a man like Ahitophel is when the Lord turn his wisdom – strategy and tactics – into foolishness.

Ahitophel knew strategy, but David knew the Lord. Can strategy defeat the Lord? When God steps in, He can turn the greatest strategy to the greatest mistake and foolishness. And He can also turn the greatest weakness to greatest strength. Sometimes, you have to be ready for the Lord to turn your greatest mistake to your greatest strategy. God will turn your greatest weakness to your strength.

3. You may not be able to fight or defeat a person in power

How can you win a boss that is against your promotion when

you are best qualified? How can you win the president, governor or strong politicians that takes over your properties except the Lord fight for you? How can you win anyone above you that says he or she would ensure you amount to nothing?

You can only defeat this kind when the Lord fight for you. When those above you claim to be stronger than you, don't ever claim to be stronger, you should only claim to have the stronger Lord to your side.

4. You may not be able to fight or defeat anyone that has more advantage than you.

Advantage may be connection, position, influence, exposure and so on. When a person who is connected to the governor or political godfather is at war with you, you can't win except the Lord is with you. The connection of that person is his advantage.

Proverbs 21:31 says "The horse is prepared for the day of battle but victory is of the Lord." The Egyptians had more advantage (weapons, horses, chariots, strategies and exposures) than the Israelites, but when the Lord stepped in to fight for them, all the advantages became nothing.

5. You may not be able to fight or defeat a nation (government)

The Israelites were pursued by the government of Egypt. One time, the government of Nigeria said no crusade, but Idahosa went ahead. When the Lord fight for a man, that man becomes stronger than the government of a nation.

2 Chronicles 20:15 reveals that God told Jehoshaphat, king of Judah and all Judah that the battle wasn't theirs but God's. There are battles that are not yours but God's. The victory, successes, achievements that you cannot get by your power can only be gotten by God.

In 2 Chronicles 20:17, God Himself said "you will not need to fight in this battle." When God begins to fight for you, you will not need to do anything but to just watch.

POSITIONS AND STATUS YOU CANNOT GET YOURSELF

JOSEPH

God showed Joseph that his family (father, mother and brothers) bowed to him but didn't show him he would become the prime minister in Egypt.

Let's be real, there are positions, status you can't dream of. Why? Your mind can't capture it. Only God can make it happen for you. Joseph didn't know he would become a prime minister in Egypt. It should be believed that no man can capture the totality of the end God has for him.

DAVID

David didn't know he would be anointed king by Samuel on the day it happened. In fact, David didn't prepare to kill Goliath in the morning of the day it happened. It could be assumed that David's biological father sent him to check is brother at the battle field, but God's decree that morning was for David to be sent to kill Goliath.

ESTHER

Esther prepared to be the queen but Mordeccai didn't prepare to be next to the king because he didn't see it coming. Scriptures reveal that Mordeccai was great among the Jews. Don't forget that this man who was next to the king was once a guard in the same king's palace. That is why you must not look down on yourself regardless of wherever you are, you must keep your focus and maintain your gaze.

SOLOMON

Solomon knew he would become a king but didn't know he would be anointed the king on the morning of the day he was made a king. Solomon was made a king in the afternoon. Any day can be your day but as long as God is involved, you should know that one day will be your day.

During my secondary school days, I was among the top prefects selected to represent our school at an occasion. In fact, I was the assistant senior prefect then. Then, we came in contact with many dignitaries. Among the top dignitaries was former president Olusegun Obasanjo, he just left the office of the president then, so, he came to where we were and gave hand shake to everyone. But when he got to me, he hugged me. Do you know that that picture created a strong image of greatness to me? Prior before that time, I knew I will be great. But from that moment, the image of greatness became real to me. I didn't know I would have a hug with the former president before I left our house that morning, but it did happened. That is how great things will begin to happen in your life without planning for it. Ephesians 3:20 reveals God can do more than you ask or think. Has God promised you a position or status, just believe Him.

MY PERSONAL EXPERIENCE

During my first year at the university, I was instructed by God to leave the campus fellowship I was attending and go to another. I had to obey willfully. On my way to the new fellowship I was instructed to go, the Lord spoke to me that he was taking to that fellowship to do His work there and be a president there. I heard it clearly that God said he would make me a president there. Right from my first day in that fellowship, I knew I was going to become a president. But something happened in my second year. I didn't know what I did, but maybe out of envy, the president of the fellowship said to someone very close to him that he would ensure I become nothing in that fellowship. Some things transpired and I was removed from the executive. You see, that man removed me from the executive but he failed to remove from my heart the promise or prophecy God had given me that I would become a president. In fact, he didn't know what God had told me.

During those times, some people spoke with me but I wasn't bothered because it's not a political office but a spiritual one. Eventually, when it was time for the appointment of new executives for a new tenure, I was appointed as the president. This now happened in my final year. The man who said he would ensure I become a nobody there was nowhere to be found. The wonder there was that he was there on the day I was sworn in as the president.

The lesson I learned through that situation was that God spoke

to me at 100 level about something that would happen at 400 level. But God didn't tell me it would happen at 400 level, He just told me what He wanted to do but didn't tell me when. In fact, He didn't tell me someone would rise against me to pull me down. I want you to know that when God speaks, it may take time before it manifested, but as long as you are on track, it will definitely happen.

Has God promised you a position or status, just believe Him and walk in life with what he has told you. Soon, it will come to pass.

Just like it happened to many people, you have to be prepared to get positions or status you don't yet know about.

WALK IN THE CONSCIOUSNESS OF WHAT HE HAS TOLD YOU

If God has told you about certain level or status, you need to find out what to do to get there. If God has told you or painted the image of you becoming the top management executive of your company or a company where you work, you may need to take further your studies to get more certification. Sometimes, you may need to take some professional courses. You cannot rise to some top position if you haven't gotten certain certification. Yes, God has promised to take you there, but you should know that even if God promise to take you to a country, you need to get your international passport and visa. So also, if the Lord has promised you a position or status, ensure you get the right certification or professional courses that will qualify you for the position.

BE THE BEST

Lazy people cannot earn God's promises. Don't be part of those who say God doesn't need any physical thing to earn his promise. No! God wants you to be the best. In fact, why He told you earlier about where He has prepared for you is so you can give practice and prepare for it. God doesn't sponsor flops or mediocrity. He goes after those who have the right insight and whose heart have the capacity to handle what is coming.

Sometimes, you may need to remain where you are so that God can find you where He has assigned your elevation to meet you. In the story I shared above, I could have left that fellowship considering the spiritual immaturity of the erstwhile leader, but I remained there because that is where He (God) puts me. When God finds you where He puts you, He will soon lift you to a desired place.

HONOR YOU CANNOT GET YOURSELF

Daniel was a slave in Babylon. After he interpreted the king's dream, we see how king Nebuchadnezzar prostrated before Daniel (Daniel 2:46).

As at then, Nebuchadnezzar was the world power ruler. Do you know what it means for a king like him (world power) to prostrate before a man like Daniel?

You have to understand that Nebuchadnezzar surpassed Daniel in age, riches, authority, prominence. The king surpassed Daniel in all things except one which was that he couldn't interpret dream like Daniel. God used what Daniel could do better to bring honor to him.

Before you desire honor, you should ask yourself what you can do better than will earn you the honor you desire. Don't desire honor when you have not blended your skills. Yes, God will honor you but it will come through what you can do better.

If you can solve problems for people, you will earn their honor. Daniel was honored because he solved a problem.

The greatest honor a man could have is when his name is tired to the name of God. We have God the Father, son and Holy Spirit. God Himself introduced Himself as the God of Abraham, Isaac and Jacob. Daniel 3:28 reveals the God of Shadrach, Meshach and Abednego. When members of your family can attach God to your name, then, you have earned the greatest honor.

When honor comes into your life, you become a wonder to your world.

VISIONS YOU CANNOT GET YOURSELF

Any vision that comes from God is what you are not capable to produces. Ideas are different from visions. Ideas are what you produce, vision is what you received. Visions received from God often appear as impossible when considered from a natural broad view.

To be realistic, any vision you receive from God will be unique. In fact, a way to know if you truly receive a vision from God is that you don't know how to achieve it. When a vision looks too big for you to achieve, then, you should know that only God can help you to achieve it. In other words, visions from God cannot be achieved by your power but by the power of the Lord.

The moment you realize that you cannot achieve a vision by your power, you had better run to God for help

Possessions you cannot get yourself

It takes the help and favor of God to acquire some properties. How do you want to acquire hundreds of hectares or acres of land by your power when you don't have the money to get it? If you have the money, it is a different case. But when you don't have the money, how will you get it?

Money is not the only element used to get things. Whatever you don't have the money to get you can get by favor or the help of God. The help of God can get you things you naturally shouldn't have gotten.

LESSONS FOR YOU

Anytime you are confronted with challenges, difficulty, enemies, etc., you have got to run to God. When you run to God for help, He will empower you to run against a troop. In Psalms 18:29, David said "for by You, I can run against a troop."

A man who knew He could run against a troop wouldn't find it difficult to run against Goliath. David had sixty-six (66) battles and he won all.

GOD WON'T ANSWER THE PRAYERS OF YOUR ENEMIES

Psalm 18:40-41 says "You have given me the neck of my enemies, so that I destroyed those who hated me, they cried out to the Lord but there's none to save, even to the Lord, He didn't answer them."

It is obvious from the above verse that the enemies of David prayed to the Lord but He God didn't answer them. Enemies are haters. Anyone that hates you for unknown reason will no longer command the attention of God for whenever God decides to turn to the side of a man, He rejects everyone against that man.

When God arise to help and fight for you, He will not answer the prayers of anyone that is against you. Do you remember that king Saul was against David? One time, Saul wanted to consulted the prophets to hear God through them, he didn't answer. He consulted the Urim, God didn't answer, until he consulted the spirit of Samuel through a necromancer. As long as Saul was against David, God wouldn't answer him.

I remember how God told me he's against anyone that is against me. From this scripture, God spoke to me that anyone that is against me would:

- 1. Find himself or herself in problems no man can solve.
- 2. He will pray to Him and He (God) won't answer.
- 3. Such will find it difficult to hear God.

I hold on to these words and with it, I never hold any grudge against anyone regardless of what they do. To have experienced this is a sign that God is fighting for you.

I believe that this can happen to you too. When this happen to you, people will just leave you on your lane. With this, nobody must fight or hate you if they don't want to invoke the anger of God. All they need to do is to just love you.

When this happen, you won't be moved by what people are doing to you. You will know they are setting themselves up for troubles. With this, your confidence will not be in yourself or possession but in the Lord.

WHAT TO DO IN CHALLENGING MOMENTS

Anytime you find yourself in a tough challenge, that is not the time to think or strategize. That is the time to cry to God. In a difficult situation, you should pray before you think. Moses didn't think, strategize or plan when he saw the Red sea before them and Egyptians behind them. There was no human to call but there was a God he could call. You have to be like Moses not like the Israelites. The Israelites were complainers but Moses knew how to call on God. Your prayers will do what you complain cannot do. Another man that prayed in difficult moment was Jehoshaphat. He prayed and the Lord fought for him.

David was strong, skillful and strategic, yet you see that in Psalm 69:1, he said "Save me, O God."

Psalm 70:1, he said "Make haste, O God to deliver me."

Psalm 71:1, he said "In you O Lord, I put my trust, Let me never be put to shame."

Psalm 120:1, he said "In my distress, I cried to the Lord and He heard me."

Psalm 121:1, he said "I will lift up my eyes to the hills, from whence comes my help? My help comes from the Lord who made heaven and earth."

Psalm 125:1, he said, "Those who trust in the Lord are like mount zion which cannot be moved."

Psalm 132:1, he said, "Lord, remember David and all his afflictions."

Psalm 140:1, he said, "Deliver me O Lord from evil men... preserve me from the violent man."

Obviously, you can see that David was a man of prayers. He knew how to call on the Lord to help and rescue him. You must learn this too.

WONDERS OF WONDER

How the Israelites escaped the Red Sea before them and the Egyptians behind them remains a wonder till date. How David escaped all attempt to destroy him still remain a wonder till date. Eventually, David said "I have become a wonder to many..."

Your rising, shining, success, progress, strength should make you a wonder to many. Everything about you should create amazement and surprises for others.

THREE WAYS TO SUPERNATURAL WONDERS

1. You must pray to God

Moses, Jehoshaphat and David all prayed to God. They prayed and God answered them. To see wonders in your life too, you have to be a person of prayers. Amazements and surprises will never end in the house of those who pray.

2. You must listen and obey divine instruction

God told Moses to stretch out his rod which he did. Many stopped at praying to command supernatural wonders. But, you have to move beyond speaking to God to receive the instruction He has for you. You don't only receive the instruction; you have to obey it. It is by obeying instruction that we can receive supernatural wonders.

3. You must mix praise with your prayers and obedience

The realm of singing is the realm of victory. You are not ready for victory until you get into singing. After your prayers, praise God. After your obedience, you should also praise God. Praising God keeps you continually in the realm of victory.

WARFARE ZONES

If you just want to be rich or wealthy, you may not have warfare. But if you want to impart lives and claim ground for God, you've got to get ready for warfare.

You don't have to be a pastor to claim ground for God. When you get people to believe in Jesus, educate them out of poverty, push them out of limitation, inspire them for greatness, you are claiming new ground for God in people's lives.

WAR IN HEAVEN

Revelation 12:7 says "And war broke out of heaven..."

War began in heaven not on earth. The first fight took place between angels. Scripture reveals to us that Michael and his angels fought; and the dragon and his angels fought. Why war in heaven?

The reason war broke in heaven was because angel Michael and his angels wanted to claim ground for God in heaven that was formerly occupied by satan and his angels.

WARFARE ZONES

Satan had his place in heaven before, it was angel Michael that got him out of his place. The reason the war broke out was because satan wanted to maintain the C of O in his heavenly place.

Verse 8 reveals that satan and his angels didn't prevail nor was a place found for them in heaven any longer. If no place was found for the devil in heaven, you must ensure that no place would be found for him on earth.

Ephesians 4:27 says "nor give place to the devil…" Why? Since he had no place again in heaven, he wanted to occupy places on earth and in the lives of people. As a believer, you must never give place to the devil.

If there was war in heaven, it shouldn't be strange to you that there would be war on earth. Any war in your life shouldn't be strange to you because you know that since satan was defeated over there, you will also defeat him over here.

LET'S TALK ABOUT THE BLOOD

Revelation 12:11 says "They (the saints) overcame in by the blood of the lamb and by the word of their testimony." You must know how to combine the blood of Jesus with the word of Jesus.

1 John 1:7 reveals that the blood cleanses us of sin. And when there is no sin, satan has no legal ground. By the blood of Jesus, you are victorious over the devil.

Scripture reveals to us that the blood of Jesus speaks better things than the blood of Abel. The fact is that the blood talks. Evidently, whenever the devil comes around and he sees the blood of Jesus, the blood therefore talks to him that he has no legal ground in your life. The word of their testimony is the verbal expression of what the blood has done for them. It is through the words you say that you claim the victory of the blood.

WARFARE ENDED IN HEAVEN; WARFARE CONTINUES ON EARTH

Revelation 12:12 says "Therefore rejoice, O heavens and you who dwell in them! Woe to the inhabitants of the earth and sea! For the devil has come down to you, having great wrath, because he knows that he has a short time."

The question I asked was that why would woe be to the inhabitants of the earth? But the same verse reveals that the devil has come down to the earth having great wrath.

Do you know that angel Michael and Satan fought again after war ended in heaven? Jude 9 reveals that both Michael and satan disputed over the body of Moses. The fight over the body of Moses didn't take place in heaven but on earth.

I was shocked to discover that satan wanted to claim the body of the Moses – the great man of God in Israel. That is how he wants to claim the lives of people. Just as he was in warfare with Michael again on earth over the body of Moses, so also, he (satan) is in constant warfare with anyone that doesn't want him to be in charge of people's lives. You have to stand your ground in prayers, decisions and discipline to resist satan's claim over the lives of people in your sphere and jurisdiction.

PRESSURE: A SIGN OF WARFARE

One of the reasons pressure comes on people, especially believers is so they won't have time for others. The devil comes with pressures of life so a willing heart can be tired and lose the zeal to rise for the help of others.

Anytime you see pressure – attack, loss, disappointment, failing, rejection, hardship – you should be sensitive that the devil has instigated a warfare. The devil will not say he is fighting you verbally, all he needs to do is to introduce hardship of life or unbearable situation.

LET'S EXAMINE HOW THE DEVIL BRINGS IN PRESSURE

- 1. The devil stirs up the heart of family members against you.
- 2. The devil creates issues in the family
- 3. The devil hinders the progress of your work or business
- 4. The devil attacks your finance
- 5. The devil causes people to hurt you
- 6. The devil attacks your health creates pain and tiredness to pray
- 7. The devil causes delay and bring disappointment.
- 8. The devil brings contamination to your heart for past mistakes
- 9. The devil suggests to you that you are not making progress.
- 10. The devil sets rejection against you.

HOW TO DEAL WITH PRESSURE

When pressure comes on you, don't seek the way out mentally. Go to God and open up to Him in prayers. Boldly request for His help.

The way God works is unique. God uses pressure to empower people. In other words, what the devil intend to use against you, God will use it in your favor. When God steps in, He will turn pressure to your power.

It is through pressures you will discover wisdom, secrets, strategies you won't have discovered. The devil's intention is to use pressure to bring you down but God's intention is to use pressure to bring you into His plans for your life.

THE HELP OF GOD

The help of God makes things easy for you

The help of God makes things possible for you.

If you want to accomplish anything in life, what you need is the help of God. The reason you're struggling to get things is because you lack the help of God. The help of God will turn small effort into big results. When you're helped by God, you'll become a wonder to many. You need the help of God to advance in business.

The help of God is beyond what money can buy. The secret to great accomplishment is the help of God. There's a level you cannot get to without the help of God. With the help of God, you will rise faster and higher in life.

Certain scriptures about the help of God

Psalm 20:1-2

"May the Lord answer you in the day of trouble, may the name of the God of Jacob defend you. May He send you help from the sanctuary, and strengthen you out of zion."

Psalm 60:11

"Give us help from trouble, for vain is the help of man. Give us help from trouble, for the help of man is useless."

Psalm 146:3

"Do not put your trust in princes nor in a son of man in whom there is no help."

Isaiah 50:7

"For the Lord God will help me; therefore, I will not be disgraced; therefore, I have set my face like a flint, and I know I will not be ashamed."

Hebrew 4:16

"Let us come boldly to the throne of grace, that we may obtain mercy and find grace to help in time of need."

Psalm 46:1

"God is our refuge and strength; a very present help in trouble."

ENJOYING WONDERS WITHOUT NUMBER

"He does great things past finding out, yes, wonders without number." (Job 9:10).

"You are the God who does wonders; You have declared Your strength among the peoples." (Psalm 77:14).

THE HELP OF GOD

When God does wonders for you, He makes you a wonder. God still works wonders today and you need to regularly expect His working wonders daily for by so doing, you will experience daily wonders. The workings of God will always end up as the wonders of God. In other words, the workings of God in your life are the wonders of God in your life.

If you will really enjoy wonders without number, you must permit the Lord to carry out many works in your life. Every wonders of God in a man was once a working of God in the life of that man. What God is doing in your life now is the shadow of a soon to happen surprises and amazement in your life.

It is wonders without number that will make you a great wonder to the world. Wonders without number will make you a wonder man. I pray that whatever God is doing in your life now will never be aborted. It will produce great blessings in Jesus name.



About the Author

Niyi Makinde is a leadership expert, quotient coach, consultant, author and a Christian minister with an apostolic calling.

His passion is to raise Christian ministers and leaders like himself, as well as to help organisations and businesses maximize their potentials. Apostle Niyi Makinde has been in Christian ministry for over fifteen years. He is the President of Rebirth Global Church, a network of churches across the globe on a mission to empower believers to fulfill their God-given tasks on earth.

He is an apostolic oversight and covering for many other ministries, networks and churches.

Also by Niyi Makinde

ApostleNiyiMakindeasanAuthorhaswrittenseveralinsightful and powerful books, among which are:

- 1. Divine Instructions
- 2. 12 Laws of Divine Instructions
- 3. Breaking Life Code
- 4. Revolutionary Apostle
- 5. Power to Prosper
- 6. Power to Become
- 7. 53 Laws of Excellence
- 8. ChurchShift
- 9. Business Sense
- 10.Dealing With Human Enemies
- 11. Wisdom For All Round
- 12. WisdomPower
- 13. Prayer Force Volume1
- 14. Multiply
- 15. Tithing
- 16. You are Different
- 17. Phronesis For Dating
- 18. Dating, Marriage and Sex
- 19. Managing Divine People
- 20. Power to Get Wealth
- 21. Spiritual Fatherhood
- 22. Managing Divine People
- 23. Understanding Honor
- 24. Flourish And GrowVolume1
- 25. Faith Dimension Volume1
- 26. Ministry Laws Volume1

- 27. Secrets to Supernatural (Financial) Abundance
- 28. Running Like the Deer
- 29. Prayer Force volume 2
- 30. Making Things Happen
- 31. You are a Seer
- 32. 79 Insights Into Favor
- 33. New Creation
- 34. Prayer Education
- 35. 20 Facts about Human spirit
- 36. Supernatural Visions
- 37. Understanding Church System
- 38. 11 Facts about Human mind
- 39. The Holy Spirit
- 40. Dominion in the realm of Abundance
- 41. Soul Winning Manual
- 42. Maintaining Sound Health
- 43. Faith for Abundance
- 44. New Levels
- 45. Wisdom for Abundance
- 46. The Power of Meditation
- 47. Understanding Supernatural Dreams
- 48. Stop Multiplying in Affliction
- 49. Communication Ethics in Ministry
- 50. Ministry Ethics (Volume 1)
- 51. Warfare for Honor
- 52. Wave of Increase
- 53. Praise for Favor
- 54. Ministers' Training Manual
- 55. Breaking Joy Code
- 56. The Power of His Name
- 57. You are a wonder

- 58. Roar and Soar
- 59. The Minister and the Ministry
- 60. Grace Factor
- 61. Subdue and Dominate
- 62. Flourish and Grow (volume 2)
- 63. Overtake
- 64. Victory over Afflictions
- 65. The Power of Patience
- 66. Stand out to Step out
- 67. Shining like the Sun
- 68. 30 Channels of Wealth
- 69. Breaking into Laughter
- 70. The Power to Dominate
- 71. Enjoying Health
- 72. Stronger than the stronger
- 73. Battle for Wealth
- 74. Wealth Transfer
- 75. Maximum Protection
- 76. The Power to be on Time
- 77. Power Activators
- 78. Essence of Obedience
- 79. The Power of words
- 80. Planting a branch Church
- 81. Dimensions of Power
- 82. Your Reality Today (Yoreto)